
Finance Committee Agenda 
January 13, 2022 
Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: January 6, 2022 

TO: Owen Brown, Karen Cogswell, Marshall Delk, David Heald, Michael 
Machado, Kelly Nesheim, Gun Ruder, Steve Snodgrass,  
Trevor Strudley 

FROM: Pegi Ard, Chief Financial Officer 

STAFF: Eileen Hill, Nancy Machado 

GUESTS: Brian Sharpes, Graystone Consulting 

SUBJECT: Finance and Investment Committee Meeting 
  Thursday, January 13, 2022 

   9:00 am – 10:030 am  
 Zoom Virtual Meeting 

Item Responsibility Page 
A. Regular Open Session

1. Welcome and Call to Order G. Ruder

2. Approval of Agenda
We reserve the right to change the order in which agenda 
items are discussed and/or acted upon at this meeting. 
Subject to further action, the agenda for this meeting is to 
be approved as presented. Items may be added to this 
agenda for discussion or action only as permitted by the 
Brown Act. 

G. Ruder

B. Public Comment
1. Public Comment Opportunity G. Ruder

1



Finance Committee Agenda 
January 13, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

Item Responsibility Page 

D. Reports

1. Cabrillo College  President Report E. Hill Provided at 
meeting 

2. Executive Director Report
2.1  2021-22 Fundraising Targets
2.2  Fundraising Totals and Goal

 July 1, 2021 to December 30, 2021 
   Outright Gifts:       $1,898,361 
   Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts:   $   150,000    
   Total:         $2,048,361 

  2.3 Total Net Assets, Endowed Net Assets and 
    Historical Gifts Chart as of November 30, 2021 

E. Hill 75 
76 
77 

78 

3. Review of CCF Investments as of December 31, 2021 B. Sharpes Emailed 
separately 

3. 2022-2023 Budget Timeline N. Machado 81 

C. Action Items
1. October 14, 2021 Meeting Minutes G. Ruder 4 – 8 

2. Investment Consultant Review E. Hill 9 – 54 

3. October 31, 2021 Financial Statements
3.1    Balance Sheet 
3.2    Income Statement by Fund 
3.3    Income Statement Budget-to-Actual 

G. Ruder
55 – 58 
59 – 61 
62 – 63 

4. November 30, 2021 Financial Statements
4.1    November 30, 2021 Condensed Narrative 
4.2    Balance Sheet 
4.3    Income Statement by Fund 
4.4    Income Statement Budget-to-Actual 

G. Ruder
64 – 65 
66 – 69 
70 – 72 
73 – 74 

E. Information Items
1. Operational Reserve E. Hill 79 

2. Hurd Tribute E. Hill 80 

2



Finance Committee Agenda 
January 13, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

Item Responsibility Page 

4. Committee Calendar and Roster G. Ruder 82 – 83 

UPCOMING FINANCE MEETINGS: 

March 31, 2022 (9:00 – 10:30 am) 

Finance & Investment Committee 2020-21 Attendance Chart 
Finance and 
Investment 
Committee 
Members 

8/19/21 10/14/21 1/13/22 3/31/22 

Pegi Ard P P 
Owen Brown P P 
Karen Cogswell P P 
Marshall Delk P A 
David Heald P P 
Michael Machado P P 
Kelly Nesheim P P 
Gun Ruder P P 
Stephen Snodgrass P A 
Trevor Strudley P P 

P=Present, A=Absent, N/A=Not Applicable  
Attendance is based on the Finance & Investment Committee meeting minutes. Please 
call the Cabrillo College Foundation office if you believe this chart is in error. 

E. Information Items (cont.)

F. Adjournment
1. Adjournment G. Ruder

3



 

4



 

5



 

 

 

 

6



 
 

 

 

7



 

 

 

8



 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  January 6, 2022 
 
TO:   Finance and Investment Committee 
 
FROM:  Eileen Hill 
 
SUBJECT: Investment Consultant Review  
 
Background 
Based on the Statement of Investment Policy, every five years, or earlier if conditions warrant, 
the Finance and Investment Committee will determine if they want to entertain having 
Investment Consultants submit proposals to manage the Cabrillo College Foundation 
investments. January 2021 (the five year review mark), the Finance and Investments 
Committee voted unanimously to defer the investment consultant review to January 2022. 
 
Attached:  

A. Community Capital Advisors proposal to conduct selection process at the cost of 
$15,000 to $20,000 

• 2021-22 Operational budget includes $14,500 in 
Accounting/Legal/Professional Services for legal fees, proposal writer, and 
contingency that we do not anticipate using this year. Surplus funds from prior 
year can also be used for this expense.  

• Please note they are proposing 4-5 additional meetings in the 6 month 
timeline. 
 

B. Draft timeline for selection process in-house with Ad Hoc Investment Consultant 
Committee  

 
RECOMMENDED OPTIONS 

A. Hire Community Capital Advisors 
• Determine scope of work (full vs reduced)  
• Determine if timeline is feasible (is it important to start a new consultant at the 

beginning of the fiscal year 7/1?) 
 

B. In-house RFP process driven by Foundation staff  
• Determine if timeline is feasible (is it important to start a new consultant at the 

beginning of the fiscal year 7/1?) 
• Select Ad Hoc Committee members  

 

9



Community Capital Advisors, LLC 
Investment Consultant Search Services 

 

 

January 5, 2022  
 
Eileen Hill 
Executive Director 
Cabrillo College Foundation 
6500 Soquel Drive 
Aptos, CA 95003 
(via email) 
 
 
Dear Eileen,  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal for Community Capital Advisors (CCA) to assist 
Cabrillo College Foundation (CCF) in the selection of an investment advisor through an invitation-only 
request for proposal (RFP) process.   
 
I understand from our conversation that as a matter of best practice and fiduciary duty, the Foundation 
periodically assess the cost and suitability of the current investment advisor relative to the competitive 
landscape and the Foundation’s current needs and future direction.  As such, CCF seeks to outsource the 
coordination and administration of an investment advisor search to a third-party consultant such as 
CCA, with the primary objective of assisting CCF in an objective evaluation and selection of an 
investment advisor that is best suited to manage the Foundation’s Long-Term and ESG portfolios.   

In addition to conducting the RFP process, CCA will provide CCF’s Finance Committee and staff with an 
educational session on the current investment consultant landscape, spectrum of consulting models 
(non-discretionary, limited discretion, discretionary or “Outsourced CIO”), and trends in responsible 
investment practices including the integration of ESG factors and principles of DEI (diversity, equity and 
inclusion).   

The entire process, from defining priorities through the selection of an investment advisor typically 
takes 4-6 months, depending on your needs and the scope of work involved.  The proposed process 
begins by clearly identifying a set of relative priorities and a measure of success.  This can be 
accomplished through a facilitated discussion with the finance committee in combination with a survey, 
or through interviews with 4-5 committee members and staff.  Once the foundation’s objectives are 
clearly defined, I provide a summary description of 10-12 well-suited RFP candidates and facilitate a 
discussion with the finance committee to narrow the list down to 4-5 RFP recipients.  I will draft the RFP 
questionnaire for your review, distribute it, and respond to clarifying questions.  RFP responses are then 
analyzed, scored and summarized for committee review and discussion, with the goal of selecting two 
finalists to make formal presentations along with the incumbent investment advisor.  I will assist staff 
with coordinating reference checks and operational due diligence calls. Last, is a facilitated discussion 
and selection of a finalist to recommend to the board.  

A preliminary workplan with key milestones, deliverables and approximate timeline is summarized on 
the following page -- all of which can be customized and refined to meet your specific needs.  The work 

10



 

will be executed in close collaboration with you and your team, including regular check-ins and status 
updates throughout the process.  Please note that this project is not a strictly linear process.  There is 
typically some overlap in the timing and execution of several of the activities.  

Key milestones (preliminary timeline in parenthesis) 

 Approve workplan and execute CCA consulting agreement (January)  

 Identify relative priorities (January – February) 

 Identify 10-12 well suited candidates to receive RFP (February) 

 Review candidates and narrow list to 4-5 RFP recipients plus the incumbent (February) 

 Draft RFP for Finance Committee review (February – March) 

 Finalize and distribute RFP (March) – Allow 4 weeks for consultants to respond 

 Compile, score and summarize responses (April) 

 Select two finalists plus the incumbent to present (late April – early May) 

 Conduct finalist presentations, virtual or in-person (May) 

 Conduct reference checks and operational due diligence (May) 

 Select finalist to recommend to the board (June) 

Specific Deliverables 

● Conduct educational session with finance committee on investment consultant landscape, 
spectrum of consulting models, and trends with responsible investing practices (ESG and DEI) 

● Facilitate finance committee discussion to identify relative priorities and success measures 
● Provide summary description of 10-12 well-suited RFP candidates 
● Facilitate finance committee selection of 4-5 recipients 
● Draft and distribute RFP questionnaire and cover letter; respond to clarifying questions 
● Provide summary of RFP responses and comparative scores on key attributes 
● Facilitate finance committee selection of two finalists 
● Provide constructive feedback to candidates not selected 
● Provide specific follow-up questions to finalists and incumbent 
● Attend finalist presentations 
● Facilitate finance committee selection of finalist for recommendation to the board 

The fee for this project, based on the scope of work summarized above, is $20,000.   

Alternatively, the scope of work can be modified to fit your needs.  The main cost drivers are the 
quantities of initial candidates to screen, RFP respondents to evaluate, finalists to coordinate, and 
Finance Committee meetings to facilitate.  In addition, there are some tasks that CCF staff could be 
responsible for.  Three possible pricing options are summarized below.  Other configurations are also 
possible.  

       Fee       Candidates    RFPs   Finalists FC Mtgs 
1. Full scope   $20,000 10-12       5       3      5 
2. Reduce scope  $18,000 8-10       4       2      4 
3. Reduced + CCF staff* $15,000 8 or less      4       2      4 

11



 

* Staff serve as main point of contact: distribute RFP, respond to questions, update participants on status, provide 
feedback, coordinate finalist presentations, conduct reference checks.  

 
The project fee includes up to two meetings onsite if required.  Travel beyond two meetings will be 
invoiced at the current mileage reimbursement rate set by the IRS for a 150 mile roundtrip from San 
Francisco to CCF.  
 
A sample service agreement is attached for your review. If you prefer, we can use the Foundation’s 
standard consulting agreement as a starting point.   
 
Also attached is additional information about Community Capital Advisors, my credentials, references 
and a slide deck of sample relevant work.  
 
Not included in the scope of work are potential follow-on services such as:  

● Updating governance documents to reflect any changes resulting from change in consultant 
(e.g., Investment Policy Statement and committee charter to incorporate ESG and DEI 
guidelines, clarify roles and responsibilities, update asset allocation objectives and guidelines) 

● Draft decision-making authority matrix to clarify accountability for key investment decisions 
● Staff education and donor talking points regarding a change in investment advisor 
● Custodian selection / portfolio transition support, if needed 
● A “level-setting” board educational session on racial equity and investment practices  
● Racial equity assessment of investment practices with recommendations and action plan 
● Follow-up committee discussions / thought partner during transitions and implementation 

I look forward to discussing and refining to meet your specific objectives.   
 
Sincerely,  

 
 
Bert Feuss 
Senior Advisor 
Community Capital Advisors 
bert@communitycapitaladvisors.us 
415-577-0336 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc  Marc Rand, Managing Partner, CCA 

12



Community Capital Advisors, LLC 
Investment Consultant Search Services 

 

 

I. Firm Background  

Firm Overview 

Community Capital Advisors (CCA) is a boutique impact investing consultancy founded in 2017 and 
organized as a single member LLC (Marc Rand, Managing Partner, sole member) and a team of senior-
level consultants who have enjoyed working together in various capacities for over a decade.  

CCA’s core expertise is helping community foundations and other funders of all sizes and types design 
and implement place-based, equity-focused impact investing programs that advance the organization’s 
mission.  Our current and past client engagements include community foundations, private foundations, 
corporate foundations, professional associations, health funders, nonprofits and investment advisors 
across the U.S.  Client portfolios range from a few million in assets to hundreds of millions.  CCA is not a 
registered investment advisor and does not manage client assets.  

Firm History   

Marc Rand founded Community Capital Advisors (CCA) in 2017 following his 12-year tenure as Program 
Director for Loans and Affordable Housing at Marin Community Foundation where he invested more 
than $50 million in local nonprofits and CDFIs with a 0% default rate.   

At its start, CCA specialized in helping community foundations and place-based funders achieve greater 
local impact through the design, implementation and ongoing administration of community impact loan 
funds.  Sarah Bennett, Director of Community Investment, and Theresa Wilson, Advisor and Project 
Manager, joined CAA to provide investment due diligence, loan underwriting, portfolio monitoring, 
reporting and overall program and project management. 

In 2021, Bert Feuss and Eric Weaver joined the CCA Team as Senior Advisors.  From his experience as 
Senior Vice President of Investments at Silicon Valley Community Foundation, Bert expanded CCA’s 
capabilities across asset classes and impact strategies and added expertise in racial equity-focused 
investment policies and practices.   

From his experience as the Founder and former CEO of Opportunity Fund (now Accion-Opportunity 
Fund), Eric deepened CCA’s capabilities in community economic development, finance and governance.  
Eric also added expertise in fund structure and economics, operations, and leveraging government 
funding sources and subsidies.  

In addition to the core CCA team, an Advisory Network of accomplished professionals with specific 
subject matter expertise serve as business advisors to CCA and as collaborators on client engagements 
based on client need.  The Advisory Network includes Donna Kelley and Vinita Goyal who are specialists 
in affordable housing, community investment and underwriting; Erika Seth Davies, founder of The Racial 
Equity Asset Lab and CEO of Rhia Ventures, and Thurman White, retired CEO of Progress Investment 
Management Company and former investment committee chair for Silicon Valley Community 
Foundation, who are specialists in equity-focused investment policies, practices, governance, and 
assessment tools.  

  

13



 

Areas of Practice 

 Impact investment policy statements. CCA supports the development of a clear and compelling  
Impact Investment Policy Statement through education and facilitated discussion to identify 
objectives, define an impact thesis, and establish responsibilities and guidelines. 

 Community impact investment funds.  CCA guides clients through each step of Planning, Design, 
and Implementation of impact investment funds.  We facilitate landscape scans, funding gap 
analysis,  opportunity identification, board education, consensus building, donor engagement, policy 
and procedures development, and implementation.  Once established, CCA provides ongoing 
investment due diligence, monitoring  and reporting.  

 Portfolio and program audit. Often impact programs start on an ad hoc basis and need some 
structure over time. CCA provides program and portfolio evaluation services to ensure proper due 
diligence, monitoring, internal controls, documented policies and procedures, and training are in 
place and effective to reduce risks and ensure continued success and achievement of organizational 
goals.   

 Racial equity audit of investment practices.  CCA helps clients understand and successfully advance 
DEI throughout the investment process. We use a racial equity assessment framework and process 
co-developed with The Racial Equity Asset Lab to evaluate competency across eight indicators. We 
assess accountability and transparency across governance structures, investment policies and 
practices, consultant relationships, and staff responsibilities, resulting in a detailed action plan for 
organizations to demonstrate systematic organizational accountability for DEI.  

 Investment advisor search services. CCA provides objective investment consultant search services 
for endowments, foundations and nonprofits seeking guidance in navigating the crowded and often 
confusing landscape of investment advisors and fund managers claiming expertise in ESG, impact 
investing and allocating to diverse fund managers. Our services include interviewing key 
stakeholders, defining objectives, education on advisory, discretionary and hybrid consulting 
models, administering an RFP process, and facilitating final selection.  

 Research and analysis projects.  CCA will lead customized research project for clients.  Past projects 
include place-based investment opportunity scans, Opportunity Zone research for specific 
geographies, and creating affordable housing funding strategies.   

 

II. Consultant Experience 

Bert Feuss, Senior Advisor, will lead the engagement with CCF.  Bert joined CCA at the beginning of 2021 
after serving as Senior Vice President of Investments for the Silicon Valley Community Foundation 
(SVCF) since 2007.  Bert offers an objective, independent perspective from many years of working with 
boards and investment committees to identify and articulate investment objectives, conduct investment 
advisor searches, and implement ESG and impact-oriented portfolios.  He is an expert in impact 
investing and knows the investment consultant landscape well.   

From his pioneering work at SVCF allocating assets to minority- and women-owned asset managers, Bert 
also advises organizations seeking to advance equity-focused investment policies and practices that 
undo structural racism and contribute to transformational change within our financial systems. Bert 
utilizes a racial equity assessment framework to evaluate investment practices and help organizations 

14



 

move beyond the idea of diversity and inclusion as an obligation to implementing an explicit 
commitment to diversity and racial equity throughout the organization’s investment governance, 
policies and investment manager hiring practices. 

Since joining the social sector in 2004, Bert has specialized in responsible investing, structuring high-
performing impact portfolios and implementing impact investments across asset classes and strategies 
including ESG, mission- and program-related investments, and recoverable grants.  At SVCF, Bert was 
responsible for a $10 billion investment program that included endowments, socially responsible 
investment portfolios, externally managed donor advised funds, planned gifts, complex gifted assets, 
mission-aligned cash management, cryptocurrencies and direct impact investments.  Bert regularly 
evaluated investment advisors, fund managers and investment strategies, and conducted due diligence 
on impact investments.  

Bert currently serves on the mission-related investment committee for The California Endowment, and 
the Nominating & Governance Committee for the UC Davis Foundation where he advises on ESG 
integration and DEI investment practices. Prior service includes board member roles at Mission Investors 
Exchange, the Fiscal and Administrative Officers Group (FAOG) for community foundations, and ten 
years as an advisor to the UC Davis Foundation Finance & Investment Committee.  Bert earned an MBA 
from Golden Gate University, and a BS in Ag Econ from the University of California, Davis.  He lives in San 
Francisco with his wife Norma Garcia (Policy Counsel, Direct of Advocacy for Mission Economic 
Development Agency).   Bert has family in Soquel, grew-up hiking in the hills behind Cabrillo College, and 
spends weekends in the Santa Cruz mountains in Loma Mar.  

 

III. Examples of Relevant Work 

Bert has direct experience with respect to the scope of services requested. Below are examples of past 
and current work that is of similar scope and subject. 

 Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County -  Conducted Investment advisor search and RFP 
process in 2021. Engagement included board education on advisory, discretionary and hybrid 
consulting models, identification of suitable advisors, evaluation of responses, and facilitation of 
finalist presentations and selection.  

 Silicon Valley Community Foundation - Conducted multiple investment consultant and third-
party service provider RFPs from 2008 to 2020.  Worked closely with the CEO and investment 
committee to develop RFPs, and with industry networks to identify qualified, best-fit candidates.  
Also developed and delivered educational programs for nonprofit board members on fiduciary 
duty, investment committee best practices, conducting a consultant RFP, and investment 
options for small nonprofits. 

 UC Davis Foundation - Participated in multiple investment consultant RFPs including OCIO 
searches in 2010 and 2020, and evaluation of a planned gift administration and investment 
advisor in 2018. Contributed to scoring criteria, performance evaluation, and finalist interviews. 
Co-led drafting of Responsible Investment Principles that established guidelines for ESG 
integration, monitoring and reporting, and accountability for inclusive and equity-focused 
practices among investment advisors and managers.  
 

  

15



 

V. References 

CCA Client References 

Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County 
Susan True 
Chief Executive Officer 
7807 Soquel Drive, Aptos, CA 95003 
831-662-2000 
4 years 

The Pittsburgh Foundation 
Jonathan Brelsford 
Sr. Vice President of Finance and Investments 
5 PPG Place, Suite 250, Pittsburgh, PA 15222 
412-394-2628 
brelsfordj@pghfdn.org 
2-month engagement in 2021 

Harry and Jeanette Weinberg Foundation  
Kevin Loeb 
Program Director 
7 Park Center Court, Owings Mills, MD  21117 
kloeb@hjweinberg.org  
410 413 6063 
2 years ongoing engagement 

 

  

16



 

CCA Team Bios 
 

MARC RAND, MANAGING PARTNER  Marc is the Founder and Managing Partner of 
Community Capital Advisors, a national consultancy focused on community investment.  He 
leads an amazing team to help foundations (community, private and corporate) invest in 
nonprofits and social impact companies, Marc also manages several nonprofit loan funds, 
including American Nonprofits and the Nonprofit Insurance Alliance of California's member 

loan fund.  Marc is the former Program Director for Loans and Affordable Housing at Marin 
Community Foundation (MCF). Prior to MCF, Marc served in the Peace Corps in Romania where he led the 
development of 5 credit unions.  Marc started his career in international banking. 

BERT FEUSS, SENIOR ADVISOR  Bert specializes in the alignment of investment capital and 
practices with a mission to advance racial equity, inclusive economies, sustainable growth 
and healthy communities.  With sixteen years of community foundation leadership 
experience, Bert brings extensive experience helping organizations navigate growth and 
implement prudent, equity-focused investment practices and place-based investment 

strategies. As the former Senior Vice President of Investments and a founding leadership team member of 
Silicon Valley Community Foundation, Bert stewarded asset growth from $2 to $10 billion. Prior to SVCF, Bert 
was the Director of Professional Services at Peninsula Community Foundation. He holds an MBA from Golden 
Gate University and BS from the University of California, Davis. 

ERIC WEAVER, SENIOR ADVISOR  Eric brings over three decades of experience in community 
economic development and community development finance. He began his career as a relief 
worker in El Salvador, bringing aid to internally displaced refugees from the civil war in the 
1980s. He worked as a community organizer and project manager at an affordable housing 
nonprofit in Washington, DC. After moving west to pursue an MBA at Stanford, he founded 

what is now the nation’s leading small and microbusiness lending CDFI - Opportunity Fund (now Accion 
Opportunity Fund). When Eric stepped down as CEO in 2017, Opportunity Fund had over 100 employees and 
a small business loan portfolio under management of over $100 million.  

SARAH BENNETT, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY INVESTMENT  Sarah supports CCA clients 
with over two decades of nonprofit underwriting and portfolio management expertise. 
Previously, she was a Senior Vice President in the Community Lending and Investment 
Division at Wells Fargo where she managed a CDFI portfolio that included national lenders 
to small rural CDFIs. Sarah played a leadership role in implementing the CDFI investment 

program across the Wells Fargo footprint, including pipeline development, program design, and community 
outreach. Prior to Wells Fargo, she worked in the Community Affairs Department of the San Francisco Federal 
Reserve Bank and for U.S. Representative Anna Eshoo. Sarah holds a bachelor’s degree in Political Science 
from Stanford University and a master’s degree in Public Policy from the Harvard Kennedy School of 
Government. 

THERESA WILSON, ADVISOR  Theresa supports CCA with portfolio management and internal 
operations. Previously she was at Avivar Capital where she managed internal operations and 
conducted investment due diligence and client portfolio management. Prior she supported a 
$50M impact portfolio at Omidyar Network, worked in SME Private Equity at the IFC, 
supported the Market Dynamics team at Results for Development, and served as a Kiva 

Fellow working to launch Kiva’s US-based micro finance platform. Before Kiva, she served in the U.S. Peace 
Corps in the Republic of Georgia and Costa Rica. Theresa holds an MBA and MA in Global Affairs from Yale 
University where she was a Forte Fellow, Executive Director of the Yale Journal of International Affairs, and 
co-chair of the Yale Philanthropy Conference. 

 

17



 

CCA Advisory Network 
 

THURMAN WHITE, JR., INVESTMENT ADVISOR   Thurman White is a pioneer in driving 
policies and practices that foster racial justice and meaningful opportunities for minority-
owned investment management firms. He is a licensed attorney, angel investor, business 
mentor, and racial justice and minority business advocate. He recently retired as CEO of 

Progress Investment Management Company (Progress), a boutique investment advisory firm 
in San Francisco that managed over $7 billion in assets in multi-manager strategies for some of the 
largest and most prestigious pensions and institutional investors.  Thurman has served on many for-
profit and nonprofit boards, including the board of Silicon Valley Community Foundation where he 
chaired the Investment Committee and continues to serve on the committee today.  He earned his 
undergraduate degree from Princeton, and graduate degrees from Stanford and the University of 
California, Berkeley Law.   

ERIKA SETH DAVIES, RACIAL EQUITY ADVISOR   Erika is the Founder of The Racial Equity 
Asset Lab (The REAL), a venture that centers racial equity in investment practices and 
works to shift capital to close the persistent racial wealth gap.  She is also the CEO of 
Rhia Ventures, a women’s reproductive health nonprofit that is making direct 

investments in early- and growth-stage companies that drive access and equity in 
reproductive and maternal health through a wholly-owned venture fund.  Prior to joining Rhia Ventures, 
Erika held leadership positions at the Baltimore Community Foundation and the Association of Black 
Foundation Executives (ABFE).  During her time as the Vice President of External Affairs at ABFE, Erika 
designed the SMART Investing initiative–the first effort to incorporate a racial equity lens in foundation 
endowment practice through increased access for minority-owned and women-owned investment 
management firms. 

VINITA GOYAL, COMMUNITY INVESTMENTS ADVISOR  Vinita’s fifteen plus years in 
nonprofits have cut through intersectional programmatic areas including affordable 
housing, small business development, arts, placemaking, transportation, sustainable 
agriculture and climate resilience. She has been a strong advocate for community 

ownership-based housing at the Association of Bay Area Governments and at the City of 
Seattle, and then as part of Silicon Valley Community Foundation (SVCF). Most recently at the Bay Area 
Regional Health Inequities Initiative (BARHII), she was engaged in layering a climate resilience lens in the 
development of a land trust pilot in Vallejo.  She received her bachelor’s in architecture from the 
Government College of Architecture in Lucknow, India, and earned her master’s in city and regional 
planning at UC Berkeley.   

18



Community Capital Advisors, LLC 
Investment Consultant Search Services 

 

 
 

 
CCA Social Justice Statement 

 
As a nation, we are grappling with fundamental truths about our world marked by heinous acts of 
violence and inequitable policies inflicted upon and directed at black, brown, indigenous, Asian, LGBTQ, 
and other marginalized people.  

We recognize and acknowledge our history holds centuries of oppression and systemic racism that lives 
on today. This must change. We understand that the work that has been done to address racial injustice 
requires further effort, and we need to do more. 

We commit to continuing to listen and learn and advocate for meeting the needs of BIPOC (Black, 
Indigenous and people of color) communities and other marginalized people—and to help create an 
equitable financial system, as we believe a brighter financial future should be accessible to everyone. 

We are committed to the pursuit of racial and social justice by enabling the flow of philanthropic capital 
to more BIPOC owned or led asset managers, entrepreneurs, communities and community serving 
nonprofits. 

We promise to work to seek justice and to better support communities of color and BIPOC-led 
nonprofits and funders through our services and through the education of non-BIPOC asset owners, 
allocators and intermediaries. 

 We pledge to help our clients incorporate alternative due diligence benchmarks and standards that 
expand access to credit to communities of color and organizations led by people of color, and that 
allocate more capital to diverse-owned asset managers in parity with national demographic 
representation. 

What We Believe 

We believe that a stable and secure financial future should be accessible to everyone. 

We believe that systemic oppression has kept many Black, Indigenous, Hispanic/Latina(o), Asian and 
other marginalized populations from achieving financial stability and security. 

We believe diversity in the finance and investment industry should be more reflective of our society. 

We believe we have the power to create positive change through the work we do, by: 

 Helping funders understand how their investment policies and practices may not be 
contributing to principles of diversity, equity and inclusion 

 Providing education to boards, committees, leaders, staff and investment advisors 

 Advancing alternative underwriting due diligence standards that expand access to credit to 
communities of color and that allocate more capital to diverse-owned asset managers 

 

Source: https://www.communitycapitaladvisors.us/ 

 

19



INVESTMENT ADVISOR RFP

SAMPLE DISCUSSION MATERIALS

Bert Feuss

Senior Advisor

Community Capital Advisors

20



SAMPLE KICK OFF MEETING MATERIALS

21



RFP Process

Recommend Investment 
Advisor

Select 2 
finalists + 

incumbent

Select
4-6 RFP 

recipients

Identify 10-
12 RFP 

candidates

• Identify 10-12 suitable 
candidates 

• Narrow list to 4-6 RFP recipients 
plus incumbent

• Select 2 finalists plus incumbent 
to present to Finance Committee

• Select investment advisor to 
recommend to the board

Define Objectives

22



Sample RFP Timeline
Monday Tuesday Wed Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

1 2 3 4 5 6
Kick Off 
Meeting

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
CCA identifies 10-12 candidates based on CCF 
priorities

21 22 23 24 25 26 27
CCF 
selects 4-6 
recipients

CCA drafts 
RFP

Monday Tuesday Wed Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday
28 29 30 1 2 3 4

CCF  
reviews 
draft RFP 

HOLIDAY

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
CCA 
distributes 
RFP

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
CCA responds to 
consultant questions

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31 1

Monday Tuesday Wed Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday
2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Responses 
Due

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
CCA compiles results and conducts 
follow-up calls

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
Results to 
finance 
committee

23 24 25 26 27 28 29
Committee

selects finalists 
(90 minutes)

30 31

Staff & CCA complete reference checks and ODD, coordinates 
presentations, provides feedback to those not selected.

Monday Tuesday Wed Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday
30 31 1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
HOLIDAY

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

Finalist presentations
(90 minutes each)

CCF selects investment 
advisor

28 29 30

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pt
em

be
r

4

23



Where is the committee on scale of 1 to 5?

Satisfied with incumbent. Document a prudent review of the competitive 
landscape and suitability of the incumbent. Possibly negotiate improved level 
of services, support and fees. 

1  Keep Incumbent

Like what we have, but it is time to assess suitability of incumbent versus current 
objectives.  Possibly find a better fit and/or negotiate better value. 2  Likely Keep

Evaluate competitive landscape. May the best suited firm prevail.3  Neutral

We think there may be better options; evaluate alternatives.4  Likely Replace

We believe there are better options; identify a better fit.5  Replace 
Incumbent

24



Committee Preference Survey
Please indicate the level of importance for each of the characteristics below.

Marginally 
Important

Important, 
but not critical

Very 
Important

a. Non-discretionary investment advisor relationship (vs. OCIO or hybrid)

b. Allocate to active managers in traditional asset classes (liquid)

c. Implement tactically managing the portfolio’s asset allocation

d. Invest in top tier hedge funds

e. Invest in top tier private equity and real estate funds

f.  Invest directly in alternatives rather than through fund-of-funds

g. Evaluate and source ESG funds and research capabilities

h. Source diverse MWBE asset managers

i.  Integrated custody (vs. separate custody relationship)

j. Unbundled fees (vs. bundled or wrap-fee approach)

k. Other preferences? 

25



Committee Preference Survey
Please indicate the level of importance for each of the reporting and operational services below.

Marginally 
Important

Important, 
but not critical

Very 
Important

a. Assist in providing relevant materials for donors’ inquiries

b. Assist in cash management - review cash needs regularly

c. Prepare and route investment documents for signature 

d. Assist with vendor selection (custody, transitions, proxy)

e. Provide annual audit support & operations support

f.  Provide performance reporting of donor investment pools 

g. Provide performance reporting of advisor-managed donor funds

h. Provide performance reporting on impact investments (not in pools)

i.  Provide due diligence on impact investments

j.  Conduct due diligence on donor recommended investments

k. Provide brokerage services for gifted securities

l.  Other factors? 

26



Consultant / OCIO Models

Non-Discretionary 
Traditional Consultant

Limited Discretion
Hybrid

Full Discretion “OCIO”
Commingled Pools

• Customized portfolio

• Consultant recommends asset 
allocation and manager 
selection

• Separate custodian

• No signing authority

• Multiple accounts to reconcile

• Customized portfolio

• Consultant recommends asset 
allocation and managers for 
private assets

• Consultant selects managers in 
liquid asset classes

• Limited signing authority

• Multiple accounts to reconcile

• Client can customize asset 
allocation into pooled “building 
blocks” shared with other OCIO 
clients

• OCIO has full discretion over 
manager selection

• OCIO has signing authority

• Single account to reconcile 

Trend Trend

27



Traditional or Outsourced Approach?

Reasons to choose an outsourced, Discretionary investment approach: 
• Clear accountability for decision making and performance
• Board and/or governance committee lack expertise
• Increasing portfolio complexity with the addition of alternatives
• Debating manager selection is viewed as suboptimal use of time
• Limited staff and governance time is better spent elsewhere

Reasons to remain with a traditional, Non-Discretionary consulting approach:
• Governance committee has necessary investment and endowment expertise
• Entity prefers to be active participants in the management of its assets
• Donor stewardship and professional advisor engagement considerations
• Consultant staff can support operations and administration
• Lower cost

For either option: relationships are long-term as the switching cost is high.
9

28



Prospective Candidate Discussion
Please indicate additional providers to be considered or those to eliminate.

Investment Consultants OCIO – Hybrid Impact Specialists

• Cambridge
• Crewcial Partners (Colonial)
• Fund Evaluation Group
• Maketa
• Monticello
• NEPC
• RVK
• Pavilion (Mercer)
• Prime Buchholz

• GEM
• Agility
• SEI
• Partners Capital

• Flatworld Partners
• Sonen Capital
• Veris Wealth Advisors

OCIO - Single Pool

• Commonfund
• Vanguard
• TIFF                       Cornerstone

MWBE Advisors Wealth Management Firms Passive/Low-Cost Providers

• Disciplina Group
• Pivotal Advisors
• WestFuller Advisors

• BofA/Merrill Lynch
• Brown Advisory
• Graystone Consulting (MS)

• Blackrock
• Dimensional Fund Advisors
• State Street
• Vanguard

Green indicates a depth of ESG and/or mission-aligned investment expertise.

29



Committee Discussion Questions

1. Does the timeline allow sufficient time for the process of discovery?

2. Would the committee consider consolidating the LT and ESG pools into a single all ESG pool? 

3. What is preference for active vs. passive strategies; or blend in a core-satellite approach? 

4. How important is private assets exposure? 

5. Are there investments the committee wants excluded from the investment portfolios?

6. Does the committee want to see more impact within the portfolios or in a separate portfolio?

7. Is there donor demand for other investment options? 

30



Sample RFP Objectives

• Exercise fiduciary duty to periodically assess suitability and cost of investment advisor 
relative to competition and the Foundation’s current needs

• Complete RFP with selection of investment advisor by end of September 

• Outsource coordination and administration of RFP process to CCA

• RFP Subcommittee oversight by Executive Director and Finance Committee chair

• Finance Committee is kept informed throughout process, participates in finalist 
presentations, and approves recommended investment advisor

Priorities:    1) maintain strong investment administration support

2) deliver competitive investment performance relative to peers

3) seek greater alignment of assets with mission

4) competitively priced for scope of services and support
12

31



SAMPLE RFP RESPONSE ANALYSIS

32



RFP Evaluation & Scoring

Responses were evaluated across 7 categories weighted as follows:

10% Organizational Structure
• Viability, stability, endowment and foundation focus, community foundation experience, DEI culture, insurance, conflicts

15% Personnel
• Consulting, Client Support and Investment teams: credentials, experience, tenure, client load, stability, capacity, diversity

20% Investment Philosophy and Strategy
• Differentiated and disciplined approach to consistently adding value over benchmarks over time
• Thoughtful approach to investment and spending policies, asset allocation and benchmarking, in alignment with priorities 
• Framework for evaluating ESG managers, integrating ESG values into policy, and sourcing diverse managers
• Quality of proposed long-term, socially responsible, short-term and cash pools

20% Investment Process and Manager Selection
• Rigor and adequacy of investment process, manager research and risk management functions
• Dedicate resources to cover ESG strategies and MWBE managers, and experience implementing

10% Performance
• Demonstrated ability to add value net of fees to client portfolios at the portfolio and asset class levels over 5, 7 and 10 years
• Performance compares favorably with peer benchmarks
• Provides insightful analysis and attribution to assess effectiveness of asset allocation and manager recommendations over time

15% Operations and Reporting
• Ability to support investment admin, reporting, performance monitoring, donor and audit support needs

10% Fee & Expenses
• Reasonableness, clarity and transparency, stability, total estimated cost of proposed portfolios 14

33



RFP Response Scores

These scores are subjective. Please also reference 1) individual firm profiles provided at the end of 
this deck, 2) the summary spreadsheet provided separately by email, and 3) each advisor’s actual 
RFP response provided in the shared Google drive. 

15

Category Weight Brown RVK Meketa Graystone Crewcial FEG GEM
Organizational Structure 10% 0.27 0.31 0.36 0.31 0.29 0.33 0.32
Personnel 15% 0.53 0.38 0.51 0.45 0.47 0.49 0.60
Investment Philososphy & Strategy 20% 0.54 0.58 0.55 0.55 0.52 0.60 0.73
Investment Process / Manager Selection 20% 0.68 0.50 0.61 0.49 0.64 0.69 0.84
Performance 10% 0.38 0.30 0.25 0.15 0.30 0.30 0.35
Operations and Reporting 15% 0.56 0.36 0.45 0.55 0.39 0.51 0.64
Fees & Expenses 10% 0.28 0.30 0.31 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.35
  TOTALS 100% 3.22 2.72 3.03 2.80 2.90 3.21 3.83
Rank 2 6 3 5 4 2 1

7 Respondents

34



Performance Comparison

Source: Average of five sample clients provided by each respondent for portfolios of similar size and objective as Long-Term portfolio. 16

Performance Summary - 6/30/21 - Net of All Fees
Max

Investment Advisor 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 7 Years 10 Years Drawdown
CPI + 5% 10.7% 7.7% 7.6% 7.0% 7.0%
FAOG Peer Benchmark ($100M-$250M) 31.7% 11.5% 11.4% 7.8% 8.0% -
CFSCC 26.4% 8.0% 8.1% 5.9% 6.7% -18.3%
Graystone (client sample) 24.9% 8.8% 9.1% 6.3% 7.1% -16.6%
Variance partly attributable to impact investments 1.5% -0.8% -1.0% -0.4% -0.4%

Brown Advisory (OCIO) 27.0% 12.0% 11.5% 8.5% 8.3% -11.8%
Crewcial Partners 34.9% 11.8% 12.1% 8.0% 8.2% -18.9%
FEG 33.7% 11.7% 11.7% 8.1% 8.9% -19.4%
GEM (OCIO) 29.0% 9.8% 9.9% 7.8% 8.5% -14.1%
Meketa 23.4% 10.9% 9.8% 7.2% -11.1%
RVK 32.3% 12.0% 11.4% 8.2% 8.5% -16.0%
Red text = failure to maintain purchasing power.  Red shading   =  below peer benchmark.

Respondents

35



Fee Proposals

Investment Advisor Fee bps Fee bps
Graystone Consulting - currently $225,000 0.15% - -  Flat .15%
Graystone Consulting - proposed $180,000 0.12% $180,000 0.12%  Flat .12%  (20% reduction)
Brown Advisory na na $425,000 0.28%  .35% x $50M  +.25% x $100M + .20% over $150M
Crewcial Partners $260,000 0.17% $470,000 0.31%  .28% x $50M  +.12% x $150M + .07% over $200M
FEG $150,000 0.10% $400,000 0.27%  .12% x $100M +.06% x $200M + .05% x $200M + .03%…
GEM na na $900,000 0.60%  Flat .60%
Meketa $295,000 0.20% $360,000 0.24%  Flat $ rate (1 yr), ↑ annually 3%
RVK $195,000 0.13% na na  Flat $ rate (2 yrs), ↑ annually greater of 3% or CPI

Fee Proposals

(Non-Discretionary if schedules differ)
Fee ScheduleNon-Discretionary Discretionary

17

Respondents

36



Total Portfolio Expenses

18

GEM Crewcial2 Brown3 FEG Meketa Graystone RVK

Peer 

Survey4

0.60% 0.17% 0.29% 0.10% 0.20% 0.12% 0.13% 0.22%
0.03% 0.03% 0.012% 0.01% 0.03% - 0.04% 0.05%
0.06% -
0.90% 0.80% 0.41% 0.84% 0.48% 0.39% 0.21% 0.58%
0.04% 0.25%
1.63% 1.00% 0.96% 0.95% 0.71% 0.51% 0.38% 0.85%

very little 15%-20% <20% 20% 40%-60% 30% 68%

1.63% 0.80% 1.07% 0.68% 1.07% 0.46% 0.38%

Expense Type1

SRI Portfolio

Passive exposure

Other
Total LT Portfolio

Advisory Fee
Custody Fee
Administrative Fees
Underlying Manager Fees

7 Respondents

37



Target Return & Net Spending Assumptions

19

Peer
Brown Crewcial FEG GEM Graystone Meketa RVK Average Average
6.30% 7.60% 7.30% 7.00% 7.10% 7.25% 7.00% 7.1% 6.3%
2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.0% 2.0%
4.30% 5.60% 5.30% 5.00% 5.10% 5.25% 5.00% 5.1% 4.3%
1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.5% 1.2%
2.80% 4.10% 3.80% 3.50% 3.60% 3.75% 3.50% 3.6% 3.7%

reduce 
admin fee

need to 
perform 

stress test

provided 6 
scenarios

Source: 
FEG 

survey

Grant spendable

Comments:

Achievable Target Return
Inflation Assumption
Net Spendable
CFSCC Fees

7 Respondents

38



Additional Characteristics

20

Brown Crewcial FEG GEM Graystone Meketa RVK
Discretion Advisory Both Discretion Advisory Advisory Advisory
Required Optional Optional Day 1 Optional Optional No

- - -   - -
   - -  Fee
 No    No No
8 29 37 1 5 3 2

321 78 183 43 32 32 59
10:1 1:2 2:3 2:1 3:0 8:1 2:1
 in

transition
 recent 

transition
  

Characteristic 

Custodian included
Custodian selection support

Firm Stability

Majority of business
Transition to Discretionary?

Stock gift liquidation
Number of CF clients
Number of E&F clients
Client gain:loss ratio

7 Respondents

39



SAMPLE – FIRM PROFILES

40



Consultant A Non-Discretionary Only

Fee Proposal NDIC: $195,000 0.13% bpts Overall Score and Rank: 2.67 6th of 6
OCIO: NA

Strengths Firm Summary
Established: 1985 (36 yrs)
Asset Size: $1.1 trillion
Client Focus: Pension/DC Plans $1.0 trillion 96%
Non-Discretionary: 100% Discretionary: 0%
Endowments & Foundations: 59 $8.3B 1.4%
Comm Fnd Clients:* 3 $2 billion* 0.10%

Challenges/Considerations Ownership: Employee owned by 24 principles 

Firm Diversity Female Diverse
Ownership: 21% 4%
Management: 14% 14%
Firm: 35% 18%

Performance rank: #X CEO: Female
Manager quality: Average - Large institutional brands
RFP response quality: Very Good * 2 small clients and one $1 billion project based client

 Simplicity and low cost emphasis
 Continous education and critical analysis on behalf of clients
 Won quality of advice leader award 4 years running 
 Will support day to day operational needs
 Lowest fee proposal, even with $25,000 for custodian search

 Philosophy of simplicity and high allocation to index funds 
may make it challenging to add diverse managers
 Firm lacks diversity, but is making steps in right direction
Non-discretionary only      Mostly pension plan clients
 E&F clients < .5% of business; few community foundations

41



Distinguishing Factors

 Simplicity and low cost      Selective and sparing use of active managers      Minimal use of alternatives

“In our experience, a common driver of disappointing investment performance is the tendency of institutional investors to 
reach for incrementally higher returns.  Their desire to outperform broad market indices often exceeds their tolerance of the
accompanying risk and costs. As a result, investors often design portfolios that are biased toward the overuse of active 
management, dilution of active manager skill, and inclusion of all asset classes that offer little value.

Based on our understanding of the Foundation’s mission and resources, our proposed team will recommend portfolios 
designed to generate modest outperformance vs. indices (50bps/year), but with less risk of underperformance. In our 
experience, we have found that our recommended strategies are much simpler than those typically employed by 
competitors. In addition to improving the odds of achieving modest outperformance relative to benchmarks, this approach 
can substantially reduce costs. These costs not only include investment manager and advisory fees, but also intangible costs 
associated with portfolio oversight. Many investors ignore the fact that for every investment manager and asset class that is
added to a portfolio, there is proportionately less time available for staff, committee, and board members to focus on 
activities that are arguably more important to the mission. The greatest tragedy for an investor occurs when they suffer 
underperformance by overreaching for return, and simultaneously compromise their mission due to the distractions that 
accompany the attempt.”

42



Consultant B Discretionary Only

Fee Proposal NDIC: NA Overall Score and Rank: 3.22 2nd tied
OCIO: $425,000 0.28% bpts

Strengths Firm Summary
Established: 1993 (28 yrs)
Asset Size: $130 billion
Client Focus: Private Client 74%
Non-Discretionary: 0% Discretionary:* 100%
Endowments & Foundations: 321 $8.6 billion 12%
Comm Fnd Clients: 8 $166 million 0.16%

Challenges/Considerations Ownership: All employees are owners

Firm Diversity Female Diverse
Ownership: 9% 4%
Management: 32% 8%
Firm: 44% 17%

Performance rank: #1 * 56% of revenues. Mutual fund revenue is 44%.

Manager quality: High - established quality names
RFP response quality:   Good Community Foundation Client: Lancaster County, PA

 Strongest performance
 Full service firm, prides itself on solving client problems
 Depth of ESG expertise       98% client retention rate
 One team member is the prior CFO/COO at Baltimore CF
 Can transtion clients from non-discretionary over 1-3 years

 Requires transition to discretionary relationship
 Few community foundation clients, $20M average size
Beginning to establish West Coast presence
 Firm lacks diversity but is taking steps in right direction 
 Use of propietary products in portfolios 

43



Sample Presentation Questions for Finalists

1. Describe your investment philosophy and what sets it apart from others. How does your approach fair during different 
economic cycles? Describe periods of potential headwinds and tailwinds. 

2. Provide evidence of how you have added value to client portfolios based on attribution analysis over ten years. 

3. Introduce the primary client support team members and why they were selected.  Have each person briefly talk about their 
role, what day-to-day interaction looks like, and why they working at your firm. 

4. Describe your process and timeline for transitioning from a non-discretionary to a discretionary or limited discretion 
relationship.  What are, pros, cons and considerations for the foundation and for you as advisor? 

5. Explain your ESG manager evaluation methodology, how you define and measure best in class ESG integration, and your 
view on integrating ESG into portfolios for clients. 

6. Describe your process of advising clients on selection of custodian and assisting with transition. 

7. Describe the role of hedge funds in the portfolio. Do you prioritize (1) return generation (2) dampening volatility, or capital 
preservation?  Which strategies are employed?  Which are avoided? How have your views on hedge funds changed over 
time and how has that been expressed in client portfolios?

8. Describe how you will support management of or oversight and reporting for CRT and CGA portfolios, thematic portfolios, 
and externally managed DAFs.

What else does the FC want to know?   Do you have sufficient information to make a decision? 

25

44



THANK YOU

BERT FEUSS

Senior Advisor

Community Capital Advisors 

bert@communitycapitaladvisors.us

415-577-0336

MARC RAND

Managing Partner

Community Capital Advisors 

marc@communitycapitaladvisors.us

415-577-1420

45



SAMPLE Service Agreement 

Date 
 
Name 
Title 
Organization 
Address 
(via email) 
 
Re: Service Agreement between CCA and [Client] 
 

Dear [Name],  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide consulting services to [Client]. 
 
This agreement for consulting services (the “Agreement”) is made by and between [Client], located at 
[Address] ("Client”) and Community Capital Advisors, an independent consulting firm located at 905 
Kansas Street #2, San Francisco, CA  94107 ("CCA”) (Client and CCA, each, a “Party,” and together, the 
“Parties”). 
 
1) Description of Services 

a) CCA is pleased to provide those services (the “Services”) described in the attached Exhibit A, as 
it may be amended or updated from time to time by mutual written agreement as provided in 
this Agreement (as amended or updated, the “Statement of Work”). 

b) In exchange for the provision of Services described on the Statement of Work, Client agrees to 
make payments to CCA as described in the Statement of Work (the “Fee”).  The Fee will be 
payable in arrears upon invoicing by CCA as further described in the Statement of Work. 

c) Invoices will be directed to the Client at the address or email address specified under Notices 
below. Payment by check or electronic transfer is due upon receipt of invoice.  If one or more 
invoices are past due by 30 days or more, CCA will have the right to halt or terminate the 
Services entirely until payment is received. 

2) Effective Date; Term; Termination 

a) This Agreement is effective as of [Date] and will continue in effect until the Services described in 
Exhibit A have been completed or the agreement is terminated, whichever is earlier.  

b) This Agreement may be terminated by either party for any reason, provided that termination of 
this Agreement will not terminate Client's obligations to make the payments outlined on Exhibit 
A, unless otherwise specified on Exhibit A.  Termination will be effective 10 business days after 
an oral or a written notice is given, whichever is earlier.  Any oral notice must be confirmed to 
the other party in writing during the 10-day period.  Written notice or confirmation of oral 
notice must be sent to Client or CCA by email or to the addresses listed above.  

c) Unless otherwise determined, upon termination of this Agreement, CCA will deliver all finished 

46



Page 2 of 8 
 

or unfinished documents, reports, summaries, lists, charts, graphs, or materials prepared for 
Client and not yet delivered (whether complete or partial). 

3) Standard of Care 

a) CCA will discharge its duties herein with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances that a prudent investor acting in like capacity and familiar with such matters 
would use in the conduct of any enterprise of like character with like aims. 

4) No Discretionary Authority; Basis of Recommendations 

a) The Services will be limited to those specified in Exhibit A.  Client acknowledges that CCA is not 
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) as an investment advisor. 
Client will retain absolute discretion over, and the entire responsibility for, all decisions 
regarding Client’s portfolio, including, without limitation, all decisions regarding selection of 
investment consultants, managers, strategies, investment objectives, types of assets and their 
allocations, specific securities, brokers, transactions and all other matters related to the Client’s 
portfolios. CCA will consult with Client, conduct research, provide information, prepare reports 
and perform such other tasks as may be necessary or appropriate to assist Client in the selection 
of an investment consultant.  CCA’s research and reports will be based on information obtained 
from a wide variety of public and private sources, including, in the case of registered investment 
advisors, copies of their Forms ADV and periodic questionnaires. 

b) Although the information collected by CCA is believed to be reliable, CCA cannot guarantee the 
accuracy or validity of such information and, unless performed directly by CCA, the uniformity of 
the manner in which investment performance calculations are made.  Client understands that 
the prior performance of an investment advisor is not necessarily indicative of such investment 
manager’s future results.  

c) If Client requests CCA’s assistance in the selection of an investment advisor, CCA will, after 
receipt of appropriate information from and about Client, recommend investment advisors and 
corresponding investment vehicles which, in CCA’s opinion, appear suitable for Client, based on 
Client’s investment objectives, risk/return expectations, and projected liquidity needs, among 
other considerations, all as set forth in Client’s Investment Policy Statement (the “IPS”). 

d) With respect to the Services: 

i) No aspect of the Services shall: 1) be used by CCF as the sole criteria for any investment 
decision 2) constitute a recommendation regarding the suitability of the investment product 
for investment by CCF 3) be considered an opinion with respect to the strategy or likely 
future investment performance of the investment product and / or 4) be construed as 
investment advice. 

ii) The Consultant shall not be deemed an Investment Adviser as a result of the Services 
rendered under this Agreement and / or interpreted under the laws or regulations of the 
United States Securities and Exchange Commission or any similar body having the authority 
in other jurisdictions. 

5) Limitation of Liability; Services Not Provided. 

47



Page 3 of 8 
 

a) CCA will not be liable for the conduct or investment performance, either historical or 
prospective, of any investment consultant, fund manager, service provider or any investment 
analyzed by CCA and selected by Client.  

b) CCA will not be responsible for any losses resulting from or in connection with Client’s choice of 
service providers, investment consultants or fund managers. 

c) CCA will not be responsible for rendering any tax, legal or accounting advice to Client or 
preparing for Client any legal, tax, accounting or actuarial documents. 

6) Information to be Provided by Client; Investment Restrictions. 

a) It will be Client’s responsibility to advise CCA of Client’s investment objectives, risk/return 
expectations, projected liquidity needs and other relevant information, based on which CCA will 
provide the Services to Client.  It will be Client’s responsibility to advise CCA of any changes or 
modifications to its objectives, needs and expectations. 

b) Client will provide or instruct its accountant, third party administrator, benefit consultant, 
actuary, custodian, bank, investment manager(s), tax and/or legal advisor to provide CCA with 
any and all necessary and appropriate information, including account reports and Client 
documents, as requested by CCA in order to perform the Services. 

c) Client agrees and understands that, in providing the Services, CCA will rely on the information 
provided by Client, its agents, representatives or advisors.  CCA will not verify or audit any 
information so obtained, and will not be required to do so, unless Client requests otherwise in 
writing.   

7) Non-Exclusive Arrangement 

a) This is a non-exclusive arrangement. Client understands and agrees that CCA may make 
recommendations to its other clients, which may differ from advice given to Client or the timing 
of such advice.   

8) Client Commitments 

a) In order to perform the Services within the Term and as outlined in the Scope of Work, Client 
agrees to provide all necessary documents and/or resources to CCA; assist in introductions to 
key individuals for interviews; respond in a timely manner to draft materials; and prepare for all 
meetings with CCA. Client acknowledges that late or incomplete responses or information may 
jeopardize the schedule and/or quality of Services rendered.  

9) Proprietary Rights 

a) Ownership by Client. Client shall own all right, title and interest in and to all work product 
developed by CCA pursuant to this Agreement including, without limitation, all written 
deliverables, works of authorship, derivative works and patentable and unpatentable inventions 
and improvements, all copies of such works in whatever medium such copies are fixed or 
embodied and all worldwide copyrights, trademarks, patents or other intellectual property 
rights in and to such works (collectively, the “Work Product”). 
 

b) Reservation of Rights. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Section 5, all Confidential 

48



Page 4 of 8 
 

Information, data and materials owned by CCA prior to the execution of this Agreement, in the 
possession of CCA prior to the execution of this Agreement or developed by CCA independently 
of this Agreement and without reference to the Client Confidential Information (collectively, 
“Reserved Materials”) shall (as between Client and CCA) continue to belong exclusively to CCA, 
whether or not they were specifically adapted for use in providing the Services. CCA hereby 
grants Client a perpetual, royalty-free license to use the Reserved Materials solely in connection 
with the Work Product developed for Client hereunder or any derivative work created 
therefrom or improvement thereon. 

10) Limitation of Liability 

a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, except for indemnity obligations 
hereunder and claims arising out of the unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential 
Information, under no circumstances will either party have any obligation or liability to the other 
hereunder for any incidental, indirect, consequential or special damages incurred by the other 
party (including damages for lost business, lost profits or damages to business reputation), 
regardless of how such damages arise and regardless of whether or not a party was advised such 
damages arise and regardless of whether or not a party was advised such damages might arise. 
The foregoing limitations shall apply notwithstanding any failure of essential purpose of any 
limited remedy. 

11) Warranties 

a) CCA agrees to perform the Services in conformance with generally accepted professional 
standards. CCA makes no other warranties, whether express or implied. CCA’s role in performing 
the Services is advisory in nature, and CCA does not provide legal or tax advice.  In no event shall 
CCA’s liability hereunder exceed the dollar amount of this Agreement. Client agrees to defend, 
indemnify and hold CCA harmless from and against any and all third-party claims resulting 
directly or indirectly from Client’s use of the Work Product or any other deliverable produced by 
CCA under this Agreement. 

 
12) Confidentiality 

a) “Confidential Information” for the purposes of this Agreement shall mean all confidential and 
proprietary information owned or possessed by either Party (the “Disclosing Party”) and 
disclosed by such Party to the other Party (the “Receiving Party”) prior to the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement that is marked as confidential, or that the Receiving party 
should reasonably understand to be confidential. Confidential Information shall include, 
without limitation, any data processes, computer or software products or programs, cost and 
pricing data, know- how, marketing or business plans, analytical methods and procedures, 
financial information and personnel data. Confidential Information shall not include 
information supplied to the Receiving Party that is or becomes available to the public other 
than as a result of the Receiving Party or its employees or other representatives’ disclosure in 
violation of this Agreement. 

 
b) Receiving Party agrees to hold the Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information in strict 

confidence and to use at least the standard of care it uses in protecting its own Confidential 
Information. Absent advance written permission from the Disclosing Party, Receiving Party 

49



Page 5 of 8 
 

may not use Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information except as reasonably required to 
exercise its rights or perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
 
 
13) Indemnity 

a) Each Party (the “Indemnifying Party”) agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
other Party and its employees, agents and other representatives from and against any and all 
claims, liabilities, losses, costs and expenses to the extent arising out of or relating to the 
Indemnifying Party or its employees, agents or other representatives’ negligence, willful 
misconduct or breach of this Agreement. 

 
14) Independent Status of Parties 

a) Nothing contained in this Agreement, nor in the relationship created hereby, shall be 
interpreted to evidence an employer-employee relationship, joint venture, partnership or 
principal-agent relationship between Client and CCA. Neither Party shall have any right or 
authority to act on behalf of, or incur any obligation for, the other Party. 
 

15) Notices. All notices hereunder shall be sent to the Parties at their respective address set forth 
here, or at such other addresses as they may designate by written notice. 
 

Client     Community Capital Advisors 
Name     Marc Rand 
Title     Managing Partner 
Address     905 Kansas Street #2 
City, State, Zip    San Francisco, CA  94107 
Email address    marc@communitycapitaladvisors.us 

 
16) Miscellaneous Provisions 

b) No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create any rights in or 
confer any benefits upon any person or entity other than the Parties to this Agreement. 
 

c) Assignment. Neither Party may assign its rights or obligations hereunder without the other 
Party’s prior written consent. 
 

d) Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be responsible for delays or failure in performance 
resulting from acts beyond the control of such Party, including, without limitation, acts of 
God, strikes, lockouts, riots, acts of war, terrorist attacks, epidemics, fire, communication line 
failures, power surges or failures, earthquakes or other natural disasters. 
 

e) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with laws 
of California.  
 

f) Sole Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole and complete Agreement between the 
Parties with regard to the Services and may not be modified or amended except by a writing 
signed by both Parties, hereto. Neither Party shall be subject to any provisions of any pre-

50



Page 6 of 8 
 

printed form, purchase order, or acknowledgment, unless those forms or provisions are 
expressly adopted in a writing executed by both Parties. 
 

g) Waiver. No waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement by either Party or the 
failure of either Party to insist on the exact performance of any provision of this Agreement 
shall constitute a waiver of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent breach of performance of 
the same or any other provisions hereof, and no waiver shall be effective unless made in 
writing by the waiving Party. 
 

h) Severability. If any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be or become invalid or 
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 
the remaining provisions of this Agreement. Instead, this entire Agreement shall be construed 
fairly and not in favor of or against either Party, regardless of which Party was generally 
responsible for the preparation of this Agreement. 
 

i) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts that may be 
delivered by facsimile or electronic transmission, each of which shall be deemed an original 
but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates indicated below. 
 
Client       CCA 
 
  
___________________________   __________________________ 
Name       Marc Rand 
Title       Managing Partner 
 
Date: ______________________   Date: _____________________ 
  

51



Page 7 of 8 
 

Service Agreement Exhibit A 

Statement of Work 

Cabrillo College Foundation - EXAMPLE 

 
Services.  CCA will provide the following Services to Client: 

Project Objectives 

• CCF seeks to outsource the coordination and administration of an investment advisor search to 
CCA with the primary objective of assisting CCF in an objective evaluation and selection of an 
investment advisor that is best suited to manage the Foundation’s Long-Term and ESG 
portfolios.   

• CCA will also provide CFF’s Finance Committee and staff with an educational session on the 
current investment consultant landscape, spectrum of consulting models (non-discretionary, 
limited discretion, discretionary or “Outsourced CIO”), and trends in responsible investment 
practices including the integration of ESG factors and principles of DEI (diversity, equity and 
inclusion). 

Project Deliverables 

CCA shall provide the following deliverables to CCF: 

• Conduct educational session with finance committee on investment consultant landscape, 
spectrum of consulting models, and trends with responsible investing practices (ESG and DEI) 

• Facilitate finance committee discussion to identify relative priorities and success measures 
• Provide summary description of 10-12 well-suited RFP candidates 
• Facilitate finance committee selection of 4-5 recipients 
• Draft and distribute RFP questionnaire and cover letter; respond to clarifying questions 
• Provide summary of RFP responses and comparative scores on key attributes 
• Facilitate finance committee selection of two finalists 
• Provide constructive feedback to candidates not selected 
• Provide specific follow-up questions to finalists and incumbent 
• Attend finalist presentations 
• Facilitate finance committee selection of finalist for recommendation to the board 

 

Project Timeline 

• Approve workplan and execute CCA consulting agreement (January)  

• Identify relative priorities (January – February) 

• Identify 10-12 well suited candidates to receive RFP (February) 

• Review candidates and narrow list to 4-5 RFP recipients plus the incumbent (February) 

• Draft RFP for Finance Committee review (February – March) 

• Finalize and distribute RFP (March) – Allow 4 weeks for consultants to respond 

• Compile, score and summarize responses (April) 

52



Page 8 of 8 
 

• Select two finalists plus the incumbent to present (late April – early May) 

• Conduct finalist presentations, virtual or in-person (May) 

• Conduct reference checks and operational due diligence (May) 

• Select finalist to recommend to the board (June) 

Project Team 

The project lead is Bert Feuss: 

Bert Feuss, Senior Advisor, Community Capital Advisors 
Former Senior Vice President of Investments, 
Silicon Valley Community Foundation 
415-577-0336 
bert@communitycapitaladvisors.us 

 

Project Fee 

CCF agrees to pay a total fee of $20,000 for the Services, to be payable as follows: 

Amount Due Date 

$10,000 Upon signing of Service Agreement 

$10,000 Upon completion of project 

Payment is due within 30 days after the invoice date.   

The project fee includes up to two meetings onsite at the college campus if required.  Travel beyond two 
meetings will be invoiced at the current mileage reimbursement rate set by the IRS for a 150-mile 
roundtrip from San Francisco to CCF.  

In the event that the scope of services requested by CCF exceeds what is outlined in this Statement of 
Work, or should the nature or intensity of CCF’s requests require review of CCA’s costs for the delivery 
of the Services, Client agrees that the Project Fee will be adjusted accordingly.  In the event that the 
Agreement is terminated by either party for cause, CCA will send a final invoice to CCF promptly 
following such termination. The final invoice will reflect work performed by CCA through the date of 
termination. 

53

mailto:bert@communitycapitaladvisors.us


 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  January 6, 2022  
 
TO:   Finance and Investment Committee 
 
FROM:  Eileen Hill 
 
SUBJECT: Draft Investment Consultant Selection Timeline  
 
 
January 14 Investment Consultant Ad Hoc Committee is formed to determine:  

• what is needed in the RFP to make selection 
• which investment consultants will be included in the RFP 
• develop RFP 

 
March 1  Foundation staff mails RFP to distribution list allowing 30 days to submit proposal  
 
March 30 Proposal Deadline 
 
March 31 Finance and Investment Committee ranks proposals  
 
April 4  Ad Hoc Committee reviews ranked proposals and determines final candidates to 

interview 
 
April 4-14 Investment Consultant interviews 
 
April 14 Finance and Investment Committee selects investment consultant 
 
April 21 Executive Committee receives and approves the recommendation from Finance 

and Investment Committee 
 
May 10  Board of Directors receives and accepts recommendation from Executive 

Committee 
 
July 1  Commence implementation 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



O:\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Agendas for Meetings\Finance Agendas 21-22\2022 1 13\CCF Financial Report Narrative 
for November 30, 2021.doc  

CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
November 30, 2021 Narrative  
Updated December 10, 2021 

(1) Balance Sheet

• Total Assets:
Total assets of $46.8M are $4.6M over prior year primarily due to the increase in value
of the assets in the bank and investment accounts.

• Receivables:
Total pledges receivable are $329K less than prior year mostly due to an annual pledge
payment of $300K and other pledge payment received.

• Liabilities:
Total Liabilities of $1.5M are $218K less than prior year. CAP Scholarship liabilities are
lower than normal because there were no CAP recipients awarded in 20/21 and the
$103K PPP loan was forgiven.

• Net Assets:
Total net assets of $45.3M are $4.8M more than prior year.

(2) Income Statement

• Revenue:
Total Revenue is $5.8M lower than prior year. Earned income is -$7K compared to the
prior year balance of $3.5M due to lower investment returns during the first five
months of 21/22.  Contributed income of $1.5M is $2.3M lower than prior year.

• Expenses:
Total Expenses of $1.1M are $73K more than prior year.

• Surplus/Deficit:
There is a $389K surplus compared to prior year’s surplus of $6.3M.

(3) Operational Budget to Actual

• Revenue:
Operating revenue of $430K is $76K favorable vs budget. Contributed income is
$73K favorable vs budget.

• Expenses:
Operating expenses of $423K are $13K favorable vs projection.

• Surplus/Deficit:
The operating fund surplus is $7K.

64



O:\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Agendas for Meetings\Finance Agendas 21-22\2022 1 13\CCF Financial Report Narrative 
for November 30, 2021.doc 

(4) Investment Report – November 30, 2021 
 

• Our return on investments for the MS Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of  
 November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows: 

 
Actual Return:    -0.78% 
Benchmark Return:   -0.54% 
Difference:      -0.24% 
 

• Our return on investments for the MS ESG Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of  
 November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows: 

    
Actual Return:      0.77% 
Benchmark Return:    -0.08% 
Difference:                          0.85%  
 

• Our return on investments for the MS Intermediate-Term Pool year to date as of  
 November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows: 

    
Actual Return:     -0.02% 
Benchmark Return:     0.01% 
Difference:                        -0.03%  
 

• Our return on investments for the MS Short-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of  
 November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows: 

    
Actual Return:     - 0.20% 
Benchmark Return:      0.01% 
Difference:                         -0.21%  

 
• Our return on investments for the MS Title III Pool fiscal year to date as of  

 November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows: 
    

Actual Return:     -0.23% 
Benchmark Return:    -0.30% 
Difference:                          0.07%  

 
• Our return on investments for the MS Title V Pool fiscal year to date as of  

 November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows: 
    

Actual Return:     -0.24% 
Benchmark Return:    -0.38% 
Difference:                          0.14%  
 
 

65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  
   

75



76



 
 

 
 

 
 
DATE: 
 
TO: 

 
 
January 6, 2022 

 
Finance and Investment Committee 

 

FROM: Eileen Hill 

 
July 1, 2021 to December 30, 2021 
Outright Gifts 

 
$     1,898,361 

 Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts        $        150,000 
 Total $    2,048,361 

2021-22 Goal for Outright and Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $      3,000,000 
Recorded Gifts 07-01-21 to 12-30-21: 

Estate of Patricia Bowden (CAP) $         256,457 
Anonymous (Scholarship) $  250,000 
The Barbara Samper Foundation (CAP) $  125,000 
Paul & Pat Shirley (Scholarship & CAP) $  100,000 
Joan Griffiths (Scholarships, Tutorial, WES, Nursing,  $    61,644 
         President’s Circle) 
Tom & Sara Karn (Scholarships) $    54,000 
Kathryn Shephard Cowan (President’s Circle, WES, Student Vets $    52,212 
          Scholarships) 
Cynthia FitzGerald & James Day (Scholarships, President’s Circle $    28,850 
          WES) 
Vertical Raise (Baseball) $    27,570 
Rachel Wedeen (WES, President’s Circle, Scholarships) $    25,100 
Universal Audio (Scholarship) $    25,000 
Leestma Family Foundation/Little Flower Fund (Scholarship) $    21,300 
Craig Rowell & Corinda Ray (Scholarships, President’s Circle $    20,109 
         WES, Veterans Services) 
Eugene & Janice Corriden (Scholarship) $    19,400 
Dwayne & Linda Downing (WES, President’s Circle, Scholarship) $    17,500 
Sutter Health Palo Alto Medical Foundation (Allied Health) $    17,500 
Jill & Dick Wilson (Scholarship) $    17,000 
Dan Rothwell & Marcy Wieland (President’s Circle,  $    16,880 
      Scholarship & WES) 
Rick & Ruth Moe (President’s Circle) $    15,000 
Edward Newman Family Charitable (President’s Circle) $    15,000 
Donald Mungai (Stroke Center & Scholarship) $    10,050 
The Peggy & Jack Baskin Foundation (WES) $    10,000 
City of Capitola (Scholarship) $     10,000 
Brian & Patti Herman (President’s Circle) $    10,000 
Estate of Shirley Manfre (Stroke Center) $    10,000 
Julie Packard (WES) $    10,000 
Thomas Sourisseau (President’s Circle) $    10,000 
     Gifts under $10,000 (1,047 of 1,074 total donors) $        662,789 
Total Outright Gifts $   1,898,361 
Total Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $        150,000 
     TOTAL $   2,048,361 
 

Notes:    1. For 2021-22, The Cabrillo College Foundation has been notified of one planned gift. 
    2. The cumulative unbooked revocable planned gifts total is $25,945,000. 

77



O:\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Agendas for Meetings\Finance Agendas 21-22\2022 1 13\Net Assets Report By Year November 30, 2021

Total Net Assets highest level was $45,687,691 as of October 31, 2021
Endowed Net Assets highest level was $40,984,589 as of October 31, 2021

Endowed Historical Gifts highest level was $31,039,063 on November 30, 2021

Total Net Assets
$45,292,412

Endowed  
Net Assets

$40,273,083

Endowed 
Historical Gifts
$31,039,063

$5,000,000

$7,500,000

$10,000,000

$12,500,000

$15,000,000

$17,500,000

$20,000,000

$22,500,000

$25,000,000

$27,500,000

$30,000,000

$32,500,000

$35,000,000

$37,500,000

$40,000,000

$42,500,000

$45,000,000

$47,500,000

6/30/02 6/30/03 6/30/04 6/30/05 6/30/06 6/30/07 6/30/08 6/30/09 6/30/10 6/30/11 6/30/12 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/15 6/30/16 6/30/17 6/30/18 6/30/19 6/30/20 6/30/21 11/30/21

Cabrillo College Foundation
Total Net Assets, Endowed Net Assets, and Endowed Historical Gifts

June 30, 2002 to November 30, 2021

Total Net Assets Total Endowed Net Assets Endowed Historical Gifts

78



MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   January 6, 2022 
 
TO:  Finance and Investment Committee 
 
FROM:   Eileen Hill 
 
SUBJECT: Cabrillo College Foundation Operational Reserve 

 
Background 
The current Cabrillo College Foundation policy is to have a goal of maintaining a six-month 
operational reserve. At the October 14, 2021 meeting the Finance & Investment Committee 
members suggested having a discussion about increasing the operational reserve to nine 
months. 
 
As of November 30, 2021, the six-month operational reserve is $541,766 based on the 
$1,083,532 budget for 2021-22. A nine-month operational reserve based on the 2021-22 
budget is $812,649. An additional $270,883 is needed to meet the nine-month reserve goal.  
 
Possible sources to fulfill an increase to the operational reserve 
• $521,297 in undesignated (surplus) 
• $255,759 in Operating Net Assets Board Designated – Hurd Tribute 
 
Once the 2022-23 Operational Budget is drafted, staff will make a recommendation on the 
operational reserve increase.  
 
Vision 
The Foundation team is evaluating staffing with an eye towards long term growth. Recent 
staffing developments that have provided this opportunity: 

• Longtime employee Georgia West, Accounting and HR Specialist has retired 
• Development Assistant has not been rehired since the pandemic began 
• Need to develop a substitute for the Annual Fund phone campaign  
• Hire staff to support new annual campaigns the foundation has started (Veterans, 

Employees, Retirees) and increase opportunities for corporate and foundation giving  
 
Next Steps  
Foundation staff will develop the 2022-23 budget to include a new staffing plan. Budget will 
be presented to the committee for approval in March, at which point, staff will make a 
recommendation on the operational reserve increase.  

79



MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  January 6, 2022 

TO: Finance and Investment Committee 

FROM:  Eileen Hill 

SUBJECT: President’s Circle Endowment John Hurd Tribute Campaign 

Background 
In fall 2003, a campaign was launched to raise President’s Circle endowed funds to provide 
permanent operational support for the Foundation in the amount of $450,000 in honor of 
College President John Hurd’s retirement and to name Building 100 after him. A total of 
$194,240 was raised for the President’s Circle Endowment in honor of John Hurd.  

On September 14, 2004, the Board of Directors approved fulfilling the $255,759 needed to 
meet the goal of $450,000 to name Building 100 with operational surpluses. The $255,759 the 
Board designated to fulfill the goal has been reported in the Operating Net Assets Board 
Designated –Hurd Tribute since 2004 and aligns with original the intent of the Hurd Tribute 
Campaign to support the operations of the Foundation.  

According to our auditor, because the Board of Directors designated these funds, the Board 
has discretion to designate the funds elsewhere if prudent. Funding designated by the Board 
supersedes any ties to naming rights. 

Once the 2022-23 Operational Budget is drafted, this funding could be considered for 
building capacity of Foundation operations.  

80



 
 
MEMORANDUM  
 
DATE:  January 6, 2022 
 
TO:   Finance and Investment Committee 
 
FROM:  Nancy Machado 
 
SUBJECT: 2022-23 Budget Timeline 
 
 
The following is the schedule for the 2022-23 Cabrillo College Foundation budget process: 
 
Week of January 3, 2022 Nancy Machado begins requesting and collecting information for the 2022-

23 budget  
 
Week of January 24, 2022 Eileen Hill and Nancy Machado to review information and determine if 

further information is needed 
 
January 31, 2022 Eileen Hill and Nancy Machado to compare prior year trends to 2022-23  
to March 22, 2022 plan 
 
 Nancy Machado provides Eileen Hill with draft of 2022-23 Budget. Eileen 

Hill reviews, recommends changes and approves final 2022-23 Budget 
 
March 23, 2022 Send recommended Budget to Finance and Investment Committee 
 
March 31, 2022 Finance and Investment Committee reviews 2022-23 Budget and makes 

recommendation to Executive Committee 
 
April 14, 2022 Send recommended Budget to Executive Committee 
 
April 21, 2022 Executive Committee reviews 2022-23 Budget and makes 

recommendations to Board of Directors 
 
May 3, 2022 Send recommended Budget to Board of Directors 
 
May 10, 2022 Board of Directors approve 2022-23 Budget 
 
 

81



 

 
*Due to Covid-19, all 
events will be planned 
with an eye for safety and 
well-being of guests and 
staff. All events are subject 
to change. 
 
 

 

 

82



83


	MEMORANDUM
	DATE: January 6, 2022

	CCA Sample Service Agreement & SOW.pdf
	1) Description of Services
	a) CCA is pleased to provide those services (the “Services”) described in the attached Exhibit A, as it may be amended or updated from time to time by mutual written agreement as provided in this Agreement (as amended or updated, the “Statement of Wor...
	2) Effective Date; Term; Termination
	a) This Agreement is effective as of [Date] and will continue in effect until the Services described in Exhibit A have been completed or the agreement is terminated, whichever is earlier.
	b) This Agreement may be terminated by either party for any reason, provided that termination of this Agreement will not terminate Client's obligations to make the payments outlined on Exhibit A, unless otherwise specified on Exhibit A.  Termination w...
	c) Unless otherwise determined, upon termination of this Agreement, CCA will deliver all finished or unfinished documents, reports, summaries, lists, charts, graphs, or materials prepared for Client and not yet delivered (whether complete or partial).
	3) Standard of Care
	4) No Discretionary Authority; Basis of Recommendations
	7) Non-Exclusive Arrangement
	8) Client Commitments
	a) In order to perform the Services within the Term and as outlined in the Scope of Work, Client agrees to provide all necessary documents and/or resources to CCA; assist in introductions to key individuals for interviews; respond in a timely manner t...
	9) Proprietary Rights
	10) Limitation of Liability
	11) Warranties
	12) Confidentiality
	13) Indemnity
	14) Independent Status of Parties
	Address     905 Kansas Street #2
	City, State, Zip    San Francisco, CA  94107
	Email address    marc@communitycapitaladvisors.us
	16) Miscellaneous Provisions

	October 31, 2021 Financial Statements.pdf
	001
	002
	003
	004
	005
	006
	007
	008
	009

	CCF Financial Report Narrative for November 30, 2021.pdf
	 Our return on investments for the MS Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of
	November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS ESG Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of
	November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Intermediate-Term Pool year to date as of
	November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Short-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of
	November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Title III Pool fiscal year to date as of
	November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Title V Pool fiscal year to date as of
	November 30, 2021 (5 months) is as follows:

	November 30, 2021 Financial Statements.pdf
	001
	002
	003
	004
	005
	006
	007
	008

	Net Assets Report By Year November 30, 2021.pdf
	Net Assets Chart




